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This memorandur is filed in support of a motion for default filed by the United States

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). As set forth below, Respondent Advanced Products

Technology, Inc. (APT) has failed to answer the First Amended Complaint and Notice of

Opportunity for a Hearing (the First Amended Complaint) that EPA filed on June 3, 2010.

For the reasons presented below, EPA requests a ruling that APT is liable under Counts

one through five of the First Amended Complaint for violating Section 12(a)(1){A) of the

Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), 7 U.S.C. § 12(a)(1)(A).

1. BACKGROUND

On September 23, 2009, Complainant filed a Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for

Hearing against Custom Compounders, Inc. (CCI), alleging five violations of Section

12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a){(1)(A), for sale or distribution of an unregistered

pesticide. In its answer, dated November 20, 2009, CCI denied the violations alleged in the
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Complaint, stating for each count that the invoice number listed for each of the five sales
transactions “is not a Custom Compounders imvoice number,”*

Respondent CCI shares a place of business and common officers and corporate
shareholders with multiple other corporate entities, including Advanced Products Technology,
Inc., FRM Chem, Inc, and Synisys, Inc. Complainant filed complaints against FRM Chem, Inc.
and Advanced Products Technology, Inc. on June 6, 2009, and against Custom Compounders,
Inc. and Synisys, Inc. on September 23, 2009, in each matter alleging multiple sales of one or
both of two unregistered pesticides, FRM Chlor 1250 and STERI-DINE DISINFECTANT.?

On November 30, 2009, Complainant moved for consolidation of the four matters
pursuant to Rule 22. 12 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice (CROP), 40 C.F.R. § 22.12, noting
that four named corporate Respondents share common officers, directors, and supervisors,
engage in substantially the same business operations, share the same principal place of business,
and are charged with similar violations of selling one or both of the two FRM-produced
unregistered pesticides, FRM CHLOR 1250 and STERI-DINE DISINFECTANT to several
common customers. By Order of the Presiding Officer issued December 2, 2009, thg four

matters were consolidated and a common prehearing schedule was issued.

' Complainant notes that in the joint Prehearing Exchange filed by Respondents APT, CCIL,
Synisys, Inc., and FRM Chem, Inc., the Respondents include as Exhibits 17 through 21 five
invoices, on APT letterhead, with numbers matching those of the five CCI invoices collected
from Respondents in the October, 2008 inspection and which are included as Complainant’s
Exhibits 58-62 in Complainant’s Prehearing Exchange.
?In the Matter of FRM Chem, Inc., Docket No. FIFRA-07-2008-0035; In the Matter of
Advanced Products Technology, Inc., Docket No. FIFRA-07-2008-0036; and In the Matter of
Custom Compounders, Inc,, Docket No. FIFRA-07-2009-0042.
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On January 15, 2010, Complainant filed its consolidated preheairing exchange for the four
matters, The four Respondents filed a joint prehearing exchange on .01' about February 15, 2010,
On March 15, 2010, Complainant filed a motion to file amended complaints in the four matters
and for discovery pursuant to Section 22.19(¢) of the CROP, which was granted by Order issued
May 27, 2010. On June 3, 2010, Complainant filed a First Amended Complaint in the above-
captioned matter, adding as respondents APT and two individuals, Keith G. Kastendieck and
Karlan C, Kastendieck. On June 7, 2010, éervice of the First Amended Complaint was accepted -
by Jenkins & Kling, PC, counse! for both APT and CCL 34

As of July 15, 2010, neither Respondent APT nor CCl had filed an answer to the First
Amended Complaint in the above-captioned matter, nor had Respondents complied with the
terms of the discovery order issued by the Court on May 27, 2010. Complainant, via email,
confacted counsel for the corporate Respondents on July 15, 2010, regarding the discovery
submittals, and also noted that no answer to the First Amended Complaint in this matter nor to
the three amended complaints in the other consolidated matters had been filed by the
Respondents, On July 16, 2010, Respondents’ counsel replied via email, stating that he was
“aware of the deadlines for discovery and pleadings,” and citing an obligation to attend a funeral

the morning of July 19, 2010. In a telephone conversation on July 21, 2010, Respondents’

* The UPS “Proof of Delivery” downloaded from the UPS.com website, showing that the First
Amended Complaint was delivered to Jenkins & Kling, PC at 12:06 P.M. on June 7, 2010, is
inchided with this filing,
*On July 16, 2010, counsel for the four corporate Respondents informed Complainant via email
that he did not represent the two named individual Respondents, Keith G. Kastendieck and
Karlan C. Kastendieck, both of whom are officers and sharcholders of the corporate
Respondents. Accordingly, the two individual Respondents are being served separately.
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counsel informed Complainant that he would have discovery materials and answers to the
amended complaints filed by July 28, 2010. On July 28, 2010, Respondents’ counsel informed
Complainant by email that he would need a further extension in which to file answers, citing

medical issues. As of August 3, 2010, no answer has been filed to the First Amended Comp[aint

in the above-captioned matter by Respondent APT?

I, STANDARD FOR FINDING DEFAULT

A respondent may be found in default upon failure to file a timely answer to an
administrative complaint. A respondent’s default constitutes, for purposes of the pending
proceeding only, an admission of all facts alleged in the complaint and a waiver of the
respondent’s right to contest such factual allegations. 40 C.F.R. § 22.17(a).

A motion for deféult may seck resolution of all or part of the proceeding. 40 C.F.R.

§ 22.17(b). In promulgating 40 C.F.R, § 22.17, EPA intended to allow parties to move for a
determination of default, without necessarily requesting a ruling on a penalty amount. 64 Fed.
Reg. 40138, 40155 (July 23, 1999).

When a Presiding Officer finds that a default has occurred, s/he shall issue a default order

against the defaulting party as to any or all parts of the proceeding unless the record shows good

cause why a default order should not be issued. 40 C.F.R. § 22.17(c).

* Likewise, no answer has been filed by Respondent CCI to the First Amended Complaint, but CCI had filed an
answer to the original complaint, and no new counts are alleged against CCI in the First Amended Complaint. The
individual respondents added to the First Amended Complaint are not in default as of the date of filing of the motion
to which this memorandum pertains.

4




In re Custom Compounders, Inc., ef af.,
FIFRA-07-2009-0042
Memorandum in Support of Default Motion

IV,  ARGUMENT

A. Respondent Has Failed to File an Answer

According to 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(a), a respondent must file an ;insxvel' to a complaint with
the Regional Hearing Clerk within 30 days after service of the complaint.

EPA sent a copy of the Complaint via UPS to Jenkins & Kling, PC, counsel for
Respondent APT, on June 3, 2010. Respondent’s counsel received his copy of this mailing on
June 7, 2010, according to the UPS online tracking receipt, included with this memorandum.
Accordingly, Respondent APT’s answer to the First Alnendc;d Complaint was due July 7, 2010.

As noted above, EPA has contacted Respondent’s counsel on multiple occasions
regarding the filing of an answer to the First Amended Complaint in this matter.

As of August 3, 2010, EPA has yet to receive an answer to the First Amended Complaint
from APT.

B. Prima Facie Case of Liability

A respondent’s default constitutes, for purposes of the pending proceeding only, an
admission of all facts alleged in the cdmplaint and a waiver of that respondent’s right to contest
the complaint’s factual allegations. 40 C.F.R. § 22.17(a).

Counts 1-5 of the First Amended Complaint allege that the Respondents, on five separate
occasions, sold or distributed a quantity of a pesticide whose registration has been cancelled or
which is not registered under Section 3 of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 1364, a violation of Section

12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.8.C. § 136j(a)(1)(A).
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Section 12(a)}{1)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)(A), provides that no person may
distribute, sell, offer for sale, or hold for sale to any person any pesticide that is not registered
with the Administrator of EPA. A(;cordingly, to establish Respondent’s Hability for five
' Violatiéns of this provision, Complainant must establish that: (1) Respondent is a “person”; (2)
the products at issue are “pesticides”; (3) Respondent “distributed or sold” the pesticides at issue
in five transactions; and (4) the pesticides at issue were “unregistered” at the time of each
transaction.

‘The First Amended Complaint alleges each of these elements. The facts alleged in the
First Amended Complaint establish liability under Section 12(a)(1)(A). By failing to answer the
First Amended Complaint, APT has admitted all factual allegations in the First Amended
Complaint, including but not limited to the following, as of all times relevant to the First
Amended Complaint:

1. APT is a Missouri business corporation. (Par. 4, First Amended Complaint.)

2. The product at issue, FRM Chlor 1250, is a pesticide. (Par. 12, First Amended
Complaint)

3. Respondent distributed or sold the product at issue in five transactions. (Paras.
24, 32, 40, 48, and 56 of the First Amended Complaint)

4. On the date of the sale and/or distribution in each transaction serving as the basis
for each of the five counts, the product at issue was not registered under Section 3

of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136a. (Paras. 12, 28, 36, 44, 52, and 60 of the First
Amended Complaint.)

The admission that APT is a corporation establishes that APT is a “person” as defined by

Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(s). The admission that the product at issue, FRM Chlor
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1250, is a pesticide, establishes that it is subject to registration pursuant to Section 3 of FIFRA, 7
U.S.C. § 136a. The admission that the product at issue, FRM Chlor 1250, was hot registered at
the time of each of the sales transactions, establishes that each transaction was in violation of
Section 12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)(A).

APT therefore has admitted all elements of five violations of Section 12(a)(1}(A) of
FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)}(1)(A).

V. CONCLUSION

APT has failed to answer EPA’s First Amended Complaint. For the reasons set forth
above, EPA requests that the Presiding Officer find APT liable as a matter of law under Counts 1

through 5 of the First Amended Complaint for violating Section 12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C.

§ 136j(a)(1)(A).

Respectfully submitted,

A SN

Chris R. Dudding

Assistant Regional Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 7

901 North 5 Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

(913) 551-7524




—i
e

UPS CampusShip: Label/Receipt VageZ of

(Keep this for your records.)

Shipment Receipt
Transaction Date (3 Jun 2010

Address information
Ship From:

Ship To: : Shippe
Jenkins & Kling, PC ENV|RONMENTAL PROTECTION ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Ronald E, Jenkins Kim Gifford : Kim Gifford
314-721-2525 913-551-7457 913-551-7457
10 8. Brentwood Blvd 901 N 6TH ST 901 NSTH ST
STE 200 KANSAS CITY KS 68161 KANSAS CiTY KS 66101
Saint Louis MO 83105
Shipment Information
Service: UPS Next Day Air Saver -
*Guaranteed By: 3:00 P.M., Fri. 4 Jun. 2040
Quanium View Notify 34 1: salisbury.demetra@epa.gov

Ship; Delivery; Exceplion '
Quanium View Notiy 5™ 2; dudding.chris@epa.gov

Ship; Delivery; Exception
Quantum View Notify 3M 3 gifford kimberly@epa.gov

Delivery; Exceplion
E-mail Failure Nofification: ) gifford Kimbery@epa.gov ... No Charge .
Quantura View Notify M Tatah e No Charge
Fuel Surcharge: e 1,95
Shipping: . e #2280
Package Informétion
Package 1 of 1
Tracking Number: 126952072993931860
Package Type: UPS Express Box
Dimensions: i3x11x2in.
Actual Weight: 2.01bs
Billabie Weight: 20 ibs
Delivery Confirmation: Signature Required e ' 3.00
Billing Information

Bil} Shipping Chargess to! Shipper's Account 685207

Total: All Shipplng Charges In USD w*27.85

Mote: Your inveice may vary from the displayed reference rates,

* For delivery and’ guarantee information, see the UPS Service Guide, To speak to a customer service representative, call 1-800- PICK-
UPS for domestic services and 1-800-782-7892 for International services. .

** Detailed information on fuel surcharges is also available.
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25 Tracking Information

Y
~

@@féf Delivery

Dear Customer, _
This nolice serves as proof of delivery for the shipment listed below.
126952072993831860

Service: NEXT DAY AIR SAVER

Soecial Instructions: SIGNATURE REQUIRED

Vifeight: 2.00 Lbs : ' .
Shipped/Bitled Om: 06/03/2010

Delivered On: 06/07/2010 12:06 P.M.

Delivered To: SAINT LOUIS, MO, US

'Tracking Number:

Signed By: . LENGERER
Location: o OFFICE

Thank you for givirg us this opportunity to serve you.
Sincerely, '

UpPSs

racking results provided by UPS: 07/15/2010 12:40 P.M. ET

Pao N ' i 5 rph N ST . . e CENT T VR A TV T R 2y s 1 Pl A ar] -~ [l ia TATIEAY
voaryapnsung com/Weh Trackined prore PO e Datr 8T S LODISYARKBYW SHTISWAE20 0007 . FIESE0H




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this 3!\,( day of ﬁm , 2010, I hand-delivered the original
and one true copy of this Motion to the Regional Hearin@fierk, and sent one {rue and correct

copy: ’ é éu??jr‘{‘ra MKM"Q"‘J“W\
via UPS, to: @j})\

Ronald E. Jenkins

Jenkins & Kling, PC

10 S. Brentwood Blvd., Ste. 200
St. Louis, MO 63105

via First Class Mail to;

Keith Kastendieck
P.O. Box 1656
Washington, MO 63090

Karlan Kastendieck
3636 Chervil Drive
St. Charles, MO 63303

via UPS, to:

Judge Barbara Gunning

U.S. Envitonmental Protection Agency
Office of Administrative Law Judges
1099 14" Street, Suite 350
Washington, D.C. 20005

Office of the Hearing Clerk

U.S. Envitonmental Protection Ageney
Office of Administrative Law Judges
1099 14" Street, Suite 350
Washington, D.C. 20005

<22

Signature of Sender




